
Parking Task & Finish Group 

26.7.10 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A G E N D AA G E N D AA G E N D AA G E N D A 
 

 
 

Committee - PARKING TASK AND FINPARKING TASK AND FINPARKING TASK AND FINPARKING TASK AND FINISH ISH ISH ISH 

GROUPGROUPGROUPGROUP 

Date & Time - Monday, 26th July, 2010 at 7.00 pm7.00 pm7.00 pm7.00 pm 

Venue - Gallery Bar, Sports Park, Gallery Bar, Sports Park, Gallery Bar, Sports Park, Gallery Bar, Sports Park, 

Dereham Road, WattonDereham Road, WattonDereham Road, WattonDereham Road, Watton    

 
 
 

Members 

Mr P.J. Duigan 
Mrs D.K.R. Irving 
Mrs S.M. Matthews (Chairman) 
Mr K. Martin 
 

Mr D.G. Mortimer 
Mrs P. Quadling 
Mr B. Rose 
Mrs P.A. Spencer 
 

 
 

Members of the Committee requiring further information, or with specific 
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least two 

working days before the meeting.  If the information requested is available, this 
will be provided, and reported to Committee. 

 
 

 
 
 

PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE 

REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILEREQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILEREQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILEREQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE    

TELEPHONESTELEPHONESTELEPHONESTELEPHONES    

Member Services  
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, 
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE 
 

 

Date: Monday, 19 July 2010  
 

 
Contact:  Member Services DDI (01362) 656232 or 656343 

e-mail: sheila.cresswell@breckland.gov.uk  or  julie.britton@breckland.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



Parking Task & Finish Group 

26.7.10 
 

 Page(s) 
herewith 

 

1. MINUTES  1 - 5 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 28 June 2010.  
 

 

2. APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence.  
 

 

3. URGENT BUSINESS   

 To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any item as urgent 
business.  
 

 

4. DECLARATION OF INTEREST   

 Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests that they may 
have in the following items on the Agenda.   
 
The Members’ Code of Conduct requires that declarations include the 
nature of the interest, and whether it is a personal or prejudicial interest.  
 

 

5. PARKING  ISSUES IN WATTON   

 To receive a presentation from the Scrutiny Officer, on research and 
feedback thus far on parking issues in Watton.  
 

 

6. NEXT MEETING   

 To agree a date and time for the next meeting.  
 

 

 



1 

BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 
At a Meeting of the 
 
PARKING TASK AND FINISH GROUP 
 
Held on Monday, 28 June 2010 at 11.00 am in 
Gallery Bar, Watton Sports Centre, Dereham Road, Watton 
 

PRESENT  
Mrs S.M. Matthews (Chairman) 
Mr K. Martin 
Mr D.G. Mortimer 
 

Mr B. Rose 
Mrs P.A. Spencer 
 

In Attendance  
Mark Broughton - Scrutiny Officer 
Sheila Cresswell - Committee Officer 
Diana Dring - Committee Officer 

 Action By 

27/10 MINUTES (AGENDA ITEM 1)   
  
 The Scrutiny Officer confirmed that Mr D. Myers was not a 

member of this Task & Finish Group. 
 
Subject to noting this, the Minutes of the meeting held on 18 May 
2010 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the 
Chairman.  
 

 

28/10 APOLOGIES (AGENDA ITEM 2)   
  
 Apologies for absence were received from Mr P. Duigan, Mrs D. 

Irving and Mrs P. Quadling. 
  

 

29/10 CIVIL PARKING ENFORCEMENT (AGENDA ITEM 5)   
  
 The Scrutiny Officer (SO) reminded Members briefly about the 

proposed Civil Parking Enforcement scheme (CPE) which had 
been presented by the Asset Technical Officer at the previous 
meeting.   
 
The Council had since received a letter from Norfolk County 
Council (NCC) which indicated that this project was moving 
forward faster than originally thought: they were requesting views 
from relevant councils across Norfolk by the end of summer.   
 
In response, the Deputy Chief Executive had prepared a report 
which had been taken to the Executive Board meeting on 21 June, 
and which was attached to the Agenda for the Group’s 
information.    
 
From this it was clear that the preferred options for Breckland 
were: 
 

• to support the county-wide proposal for Civil Parking 
Enforcement; 

 

• to replace any existing Car Parking Orders in the District to 
comply with the Traffic Management Act 2004, to enable 
them to be enforceable; and 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 1

1



Parking Task and Finish Group 
28 June 2010 

 
 

2 

 Action By 

 

• to approve the procurement of on-street enforcement in the 
District by NCC from a neighbouring district. 

 
These were therefore the recommendations which would be taken 
to the Cabinet meeting on 24 July.   The SO asked for the Group’s 
views, specifically whether they just wanted to note these 
recommendations or positively support them at this stage.   
 
It was noted that the recommendations concerned on-street 
parking only.  The Group felt strongly that Breckland should retain 
control of its own off-street parking regulations throughout the 
District, not least since the current Council policy remained 
essentially free parking everywhere.     
 
It was also noted that the recent recommendations for some 
parking enforcement in Attleborough had not yet been 
implemented as they were still being formally costed.  However, in 
the event that Breckland introduced similar arrangements in other 
towns, some eventual shared services or agency agreement in 
terms of management would probably be practical.   For example, 
King’s Lynn & West Norfolk and Great Yarmouth had substantial 
administrative support and enforcement operations already in 
place which could be extended to ensure maximum cost-
efficiencies (albeit Breckland would have to make a contribution 
for their share of any support received).   
 
RESOLVED to unanimously support the proposed 
recommendations as listed in the report (and repeated in the bullet 
points above), through the Overview & Scrutiny Commission to 
Cabinet.   
 
As an aside, some Members commented that with regard to 
Attleborough, although off-street enforcement had yet to be 
formally implemented, there was already clear evidence that 
Traffic Wardens were patrolling the streets; tickets were being 
issued; there was less abuse of the Disabled parking spaces; and 
more parking slots were generally available.   The Group 
welcomed the action being taken, which was clearly having a 
positive effect.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mark 
Broughton 

30/10 PARKING ISSUES AND STAKEHOLDER VIEWS IN WATTON 
(AGENDA ITEM 6)  

 

  
 The SO revealed that he had received feedback from a wide 

range of people, including local residents and various key 
stakeholders, such as the Town Council, Wayland Partnership, the 
Police, Norfolk County Council, and the Parish Councils of Griston 
and Ashill.   To date he had also received about 30 letters/emails 
from members of the public.   However, thus far, there had been 
no response from Tesco Ltd, the Cooperative Store or the 
Konectbus company. 
 
He drew Members’ attention to Appendix 2 of the Report, where 
he had highlighted key responses.  Virtually no one was in support 
of introducing parking charges.   The Town Council and Wayland 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2



Parking Task and Finish Group 
28 June 2010 

 
 

3 

 Action By 

Partnership were of the view that there should be a short 
term/long term split in the Thetford Road and Goddard’s Court car 
parks, and it was widely acknowledged that the Kittell Close car 
park (behind the Queen’s Hall) was under-used.  It had the most 
potential for being retained as dedicated long term parking.  
However, it was noted that there had been no indication from the 
Town Council that they would be interested in funding, or assisting 
with, any enforcement regime at this stage. 
 
Further discussion also brought to light concerns about residents 
using the Watton Surgery car park overnight; the need for more 
signage; improved lighting; and the possible need to allocate 
specific slots at the Goddard’s Court car park for the Veterinary 
Practice (although it was noted that the Practice itself had not so 
far responded to consultation).   Members noted that some of 
these would require additional funding, with lighting being a 
particularly expensive issue.   
 
Members also discussed the likely need to change existing 
marked slots in all three car parks to meet current statutory sizes.   
(It was believed that Attleborough had lost as many as nine 
spaces as a result of this exercise.) 
 
The other concern arising from consultation was parking on the 
High Street itself.  This impacted on the traffic flow through the 
town, especially as there was little enforcement of illegal parking.   
The Police were clearly conscious of this though and did their best 
with the limited resources they had available.    
 
As covered by the previous item, on-street parking would 
eventually be dealt with under the NCC’s Civil Parking 
Enforcement (CPE) scheme, which should be in place by April 
2011.   Some sort of agency agreement was likely to be set up in 
terms of implementation, with costs/income issues to be resolved 
as part of any formal arrangement.   
 
However, regardless of any eventual CPE arrangements, 
Members were interested in the suggestion that it might be 
practical to redesign the High Street to allow on-street parking 
down one side only. (There was currently a mix of single, and 
double yellow lines, as well as spaces for time-limited parking, 
including a disabled slot, bus bays and a single taxi rank.)     
 
Parking along one side of the street only should help ease traffic 
congestion along this busy thoroughfare, as well as enable any 
parking infringements to be spotted and dealt with more efficiently.  
 
Members believed it would probably be sensible to leave the taxi 
rank somewhere central on the High Street.   The SO undertook to 
discover how many taxi companies actually used it.   
 
The SO mentioned that the Community Engagement exercise – 
with prominent coverage in the local media about the Parking 
Review, as well as a feature on the Council’s webpage – had been 
extremely useful.  He and the Chairman of the Group would also 
be interviewed by the Wayland Community Radio in early July.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mark 
Broughton 

3



Parking Task and Finish Group 
28 June 2010 

 
 

4 

 Action By 

In addition, the Group had paid a second site visit to Watton in 
mid-June, accompanied by one of the Ward representatives.    
 
A summary of points noted from that site visit was attached to the 
Agenda at Appendix 1.  Among key observations was that there 
was a poor surface at the Thetford Road car park.    
 
There was also some discussion about CCTV, which at present 
only covered the High Street itself.  In response to a question, it 
was confirmed that CCTV was generally acceptable for use for 
potential parking enforcement in legal terms, not least because of 
the improved picture quality.  It could certainly be used to highlight 
parking infringements as illegal parking was a traffic offence.  Nor 
did it matter where the actual monitoring team was based, since 
details could be passed via the telephone to the local police or 
other enforcers on the ground.   There was also the possibility of 
using mobile cameras, especially to help with areas of noted anti-
social behaviour, such as the Kittell Close car park.   However 
there were cost implications to be considered.  Nor were Members 
convinced that similar arrangements in other towns had acted as a 
particularly effective deterrent.   
 
Members remained open-minded about the use of CCTV at this 
stage, acknowledging that it was a potentially sensitive issue.  
However, they agreed that it could be taken forward as an option 
for further consideration, not least since it would be interesting to 
hear public feedback on this issue. 
 
Various other options were highlighted and discussed, as follows. 
 

• With regard to the possibility of introducing charging, this 
was felt to be inappropriate at this stage, mainly because it 
was against current Council policy.   It was also 
acknowledged that since free parking was available at the 
two supermarket stores in town, any charging regime for 
the Council’s off-street car parks would result in displaced 
parking, causing problems for store shoppers. 

 

• The introduction of Resident Parking Permits was a 
possibility, but unlikely to be very practical.  It was noted 
that there were particular problems in the Merton Road and 
Nelson Court areas.    Also that residents’ parking was 
normally regarded as more of a traffic calming situation 
and, as such, was the responsibility of the Highways 
division of Norfolk County Council. 

 

• There was brief discussion about the possibility of off-
street bus parking behind the High Street or in the Kittell 
Close car park (i.e. before/after scheduled services).   But 
it was agreed that it would be important to hear from 
Konectbus before having any further discussion on this 
matter.   A representative from the company would be 
invited to attend the public meeting.   

 

 
 
 
 

 

4



Parking Task and Finish Group 
28 June 2010 

 
 

5 

 Action By 

RESOLVED 
 

To agree an ‘in-principle’ position, as below.  Also to hold an 
evening public meeting in Watton in July 2010, to which 
stakeholders and agencies would be invited, as well as members 
of the public, to attend and participate in the debate. 
 

• Not to introduce car parking charges for Council-owned off-
street car parks in Watton. 

 

• To consider Parking Orders to cover the Thetford Road 
and Goddard’s Court car parks, to enable a mix of short 
and long-term parking in the town centre.     

 

• Unrestricted (i.e. long term) car parking to continue to be 
allowed in the Kittell Close car park behind the Queen’s 
Hall building. 

 

• Until formal on-street parking enforcement arrangements 
were in place, the Police should be asked to undertake as 
much on-street enforcement as possible, especially along 
the High Street. 

 

• Off-duty buses should be encouraged to park at Kittell 
Close, in order to relieve traffic pressure in along the 
West/North and East Roads. 

 

• Consideration should be given to redesigning the High 
Street, possibly enabling parking along the south side only 
(where fewer spaces would be lost overall, and also 
because the weekly market traditionally had stalls on the 
north side). 

 

• The potential for the increased use of CCTV to help with 
enforcement of traffic offences was also acknowledged as 
a possible option at this stage. 

 

• Improved signage should also be given further 
consideration.   

 

31/10 NEXT MEETING (AGENDA ITEM 7)   
  
 It was proposed that the next meeting would be a public one, to be 

held in Watton one evening, probably on Monday 26 July at the 
Gallery Bar, Sports Park, Watton.   
 

The SO said that he would prepare a presentation.  This would be 
based on comments received from stakeholders, results from the 
site visits and feedback received thus far from members of the 
public.  This could then be followed by questions from the floor. 
 

A Member took the opportunity, echoed by the Chairman and 
others, to compliment the SO on his thorough research and the 
work done so far on the Parking Review.    

 

 
 

The meeting closed at 12.00 pm. 

 

CHAIRMAN 

5


	Agenda
	1 Minutes

